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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The great U-shaped, one-story house is built around three sides of a large
patio or courtyard and originally contained 13 rooms. The center or east
section is 116 feet long and the north and south wings measure 96 1/2 by 18 1/2 ...
feet and 98 1/2 by 20 feet respectively. The adobe walls are plastered and
whitewashed inside and out and average three feet in thickness. The tile roof
is of the shed type, sloping outwards towards the streets on all three exterior
facades and presenting a sheer wall upon the inner patio sides. This roof is
supported by hand-hewn timbers and beams that are lashed together with rawhide
thongs. A one-story veranda extends completely around the three inner sides
of the houses. The low-pitched roof of the corridor is supported by a series
of widely spaced posts and all rooms in the house open directly upon this
veranda. The large rectangular windows have heavy solid wooden shutters and
originally contained no glass. The floor is tile. There were no fireplaces
in the house and all cooking was done in a small separate kitchen. At a later
date two fireplaces were added in the north wing.

The rooms are arranged in a straight single line. The main entrance is a wide
passageway or hall with heavy double doors, which is located in the middle of
the west or center section. To the left, originally, were the chapel and a
bedroom, and to the right, the schoolroom and a bedroom. In the 1910 restora-
tion, the partition walls separating the two bedrooms from the adjacent rooms
were removed, thus enlarging the chapel and school room. The north wing
contains two bedrooms, a living room, a later kitchen, and the servants'
dining room. The south wing has three bedrooms and the large family dining
room.

The house was also once topped by a small round wooden cupola from which the
family and guests could watch the bullfights and festivals staged on the
adjacent town plaza. This feature was not reconstructed in the 1910 restora-
tion, but was constructed during the 1968 renovation.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Estudillo House, erected in 1827-29, is a mostly rebuilt example of a
typical large Spanish-Mexican one-story town house.

HISTORY

About 1824, the soldiers of the Presidio of San Diego began building their
houses outside the adobe walls of the fort. In 1827, Don Jose Antonio
Estudillo, a captain in the presidial garrison, was granted a house lot and
by 1829 had completed the large house which still occupies the entire east
side of town plaza. He later served as mayor and justice of the peace of
San Diego. Acquiring three ranches by 1829, Estudillo became a wealthy man
and his house was considered at the time to be one of the finest in Mexican
California. A large hall in his house served from the early 1830's until
1856 as the town chapel and as a school. In times of revolution and war, the
women and children of San Diego also took refuge behind the thick walls of
the house. The structure was occupied by the Estudillo family until 1887,
when it was abandoned and allowed to fall into ruin.

In 1905, the casa was bought by John D. Spreckles, who financed its restora-
tion under the supervision of Architect Hazel Waterman in 1910. 1In 1908 it
was deeded to the State of California by Mr. Legler Benbough, then the owner,
and another restoration begun under the supervision of Architect Clyde Trudell.
The restoration work was finished in 1969, and the Louse was furnished in time
for San Diego's 200th Anniversary.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The Estudillo House is located within 01d Town State Historic Park. Its
boundary is coterminous with its town lot which is defined by streets on three
sides; State Street on the north, Mason Street on the west, San Diego Avenue
on the south and its courtyard wall on the east which is adjacent to Casa de

Pedrorena.
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As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 {Public Law 89-665).
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